
Minutes of the Meeting of the Affordable Housing Trust Fund Board 
 
Date: September 26, 2024 
Time: 7:00 – 8:00 PM 
Location: Conducted via remote participation 

 
• Trustees Present: Karen Kelleher, Jacelyn Pacejo, Jack Nagle, Neal Mongold, Eric Helmuth 

and Beth Elliott 
 

• Town Staff Present: Sarah Suarez and Marisa Lau 
 

• Other Attendees: See Staff zoom records 
 
Karen called the meeting to order at 7:05PM. She welcomed the guests to the meeting and explained 
that we generally work through our action plan in our meetings. She further explained that there would 
be time for public commentary at the end of the meeting.   

 
Agenda 

 
1. Action Plan Implementation 

Goal: Create More Affordable Housing 
a. Update on Acquisition, Creation, and Conversion Program Update and Funding 

Recommendation(s) 

Karen invited Neal, as the HCA’s representative to the Trust, to discuss the HCA projects 
that the Trust has funded. Neal described 2 projects that the Trust has supported.  The first 
is 10 Sunnyside, which the HCA purchased and will be building residential units with first 
floor community space. Neal reported that the project received a funding award from 
EOHLC and that HCA is working to finalize its construction plans, with the construction 
closing hoped to occur in early 2025. In response to a question from Karen about the 
leverage that the Town is getting from its $250,000 investment, Neal indicated that the 
total development cost is well over $25MM and identified a number of additional public 
funders.  

 

The second HCA project is 40 Dorothy Road, which is an affordable accessible dwelling 
unit (ADU). Neal explained that this is a pilot project, as a single unit added to a site 
where HCA already owned an affordable two-family house and further noted that the 
ADU is a modular design, certified Passive House. He continued that the ADU is 
completed and that, as of the most recent information that he has received, HCA has 
received over 200 applications have been submitted to the lottery for this unit. Jack 
commented that this is a really great project, and housing authorities are excited about the 
possibilities that modular housing can bring, especially if modular units are exempt from 
prevailing wage requirements and can thereby provide housing at a lower cost..   

Neal then indicated that HCA has been working to do a capital needs assessment for all of 



its units, and Karen asked Neal to defer discussion of this to a later meeting. 

 

Jack Nagle then provided an update on the new Chapter 689 group home for people with 
special needs that the Housing Authority is creating. He explained that this project is in 
partnership with EOHLC and Department of Developmental Services and will be located 
on the Chestnut Manor campus. He further explained that, although these types of group 
homes have often been done in older, donated homes, doing a new build will allow the 
Housing Authority to make the building fully ADA-accessible. He added that the scope of 
work will also involve updating other components of the site and improving accessibility 
for all of the residents of the site. Karen noted that the Trust has not yet provided funding 
for this project. 

 

Karen then provided an update on the Town’s ACC program, which is funded through the 
Town’s ARPA award.  She described that the RFP, launched with the Town Manager, has 
received a number of applications from a wide variety of stakeholders. She commented 
that the program may lead to proposals that will generate new units, but that the 
applications have mostly focused on converting existing unrestricted units into deed-
restricted units. Karen explained that the Town is providing the funding and that the role 
of the Trust is to provide recommendations to the Town. At Karen’s request, Sarah 
provided an overview of the applications received. She indicated that the withdrawn 
proposal was because not all of the units would be income-eligible under the ARPA rules. 
In terms of other applications, an applicant is looking to purchase a two-family home, with 
both units to be deed restricted as affordable, and they are completing that application. 
Another applicant is looking to add an additional affordable unit to a development that is 
currently in construction.  A third applicant is looking to buy an existing building and to 
deed restrict several units. Sarah anticipates that the Trust may need to call a special 
meeting in order to consider and act on the applications. Karen thanked Sarah for all of her 
work doing outreach about the program and working with the applicants and interested 
parties.  Neal asked about the timelines for this program.  Sarah reported that applications 
are due on September 30, and that she expects to report to the Town Manager very quickly 
thereafter.  

 

Karen noted that the upcoming community engagement opportunities should have been 
under this section of the agenda. She then shared the handouts about the upcoming 
forums, which had been included in the meeting materials. She described that the first one 
has a broader agenda about strategies for affordable housing production and that the 
second will focus on one potential strategy, which is an affordable housing overlay. She 
noted that registration is available on the Town’s website for these virtual meetings.  

 

Goal: Build the Financial Strength of the Trust 
a. Treasurer’s Report 



Jacelyn asked for this report to be deferred to the next meeting.  
 

b. Upcoming community engagement opportunities hosted virtually:  

Oct. 17- Strategies for Creating More Affordable Housing and Nov. 7- Exploring an 
Affordable Housing Overlay for Arlington 

[Discussed above.] 

c. Preliminary FY26 CPA applications are due October 11, 2024 
Karen reported that the Trust plans to apply for CPA funding again this year. The precise 
projects and programmatic uses are yet to be determined, so Karen asked for approval to 
submit an application for up to $500,000 for uses to be determined by the Trust in 
consultation with Town staff. Eric commented that the CPA process is an iterative 
process, where the pre-applications are reviewed and considered by the CPA Committee.  
Eric made a motion to authorize the Chair to complete and submit an application for up to 
$500,000.  He further commented that it’s important to the CPA to figure out the ways in 
which CPA funds can be leveraged to secure additional funding to benefit the Town. He 
also noted that the CPA funding schedule is fixed by the Town Meeting schedule, so 
having the ability to use the Trust to act more flexibility is very helpful. Jack agreed that 
the timing flexibility is very important, as needs come up that don’t fit into the CPA 
funding cycle. He added that flexibility as to uses is also important. He seconded the 
motion. Neal commented that CPA funds have been directed to HCA in the past as well, 
and that he supports the proposal as well as delegating the authority to the Chair and the 
Town, and that he hopes that the CPA will make more than this amount of funding 
available for affordable housing. Jacelyn asked if we know how much CPA funding the 
Town has to commit in this cycle, and Sarah reported that the total funds for FY2023 was 
$2.5MM and 32% went to community housing. Eric added that the percentage allocation 
varies every year. Jack clarified that the application can cover both creation and 
preservation. 
The motion was approved unanimously on a roll call vote.  
 

2. Town Day 
a. Update and Motion to approve $89.99 purchase of a tent 

 
Karen provided a report on Town Day activities and Sarah requested approval of the 
costs for the tent. On a motion duly made and seconded, the Trustees approved the 
tent expense on a unanimous roll call vote.  
 

3. Approval of minutes from September 5th meeting 
 
The Trustees elected to defer action on the September 5 minutes as they are under review.  
 

4. Public Comments (time permitting) 
 
Karen then asked for any public comments.   
 



Carl Wagner commented that he has had heard about the affordable housing overlay, and he 
has questions about the members of the working group and how often it meets. He stated that 
he believes that the group should be public.  
 
Kristin Anderson commented that she has heard that there could be an overlay district and that 
it could involve industrial and commercial districts. She said that this would be hostile to the 
Town’s business and that the Town should be planning a vibrant Town. She also stated that no 
commercial or industrial zones should be included in any affordable housing overlay. 
Peter Bermudas asked about the comment by Mr. Nagle about prevailing wages in connection 
with modular construction. He said that he wanted to know what that would mean.  
 
There being no further public comments, a motion to adjourn was made, seconded, and 
unanimously approved upon a roll call vote. The meeting adjourned at 7:55 PM. 
 

 
Join Arlington's Affordable Housing Conversation 

Respectfully submitted,  
 
_______________________________ 
Beth Elliott, Secretary  


